DRAFT

LEWISHAM SCHOOLS FORUM

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 17th October 2019

Membership (Quorum = 40% i.e. 9) \checkmark = present \Rightarrow = absent a = apologies s = substitute

		Attendance				
Primary School Headteachers		6/12	17/01	11/07	17/10	Date of Appointment
Paul Moriarty	Good Shepherd	✓	~	✓	✓	Dec 2018
Manda George	Torridon Primary	✓	✓	✓	а	Dec 2018
Sharon Lynch	St William of York	✓	✓	✓	 ✓ 	Dec 2018
Keith Barr	Kender	✓	~	✓	 ✓ 	Dec 2018
Matthew Ringham	Our Lady & St Philip Neri	✓	✓	×	а	Dec 2018
Nursery School Headteacher						
Cathryn Kinsey	Clyde Nursery	✓	√	~	~	Oct 2018
Secondary School Headteachers						
Naill Hand	Prendergast Ladywell			~	~	July 2019
David Sheppard	Leathersellers Federation	✓	✓	✓	~	June 2018
Mark Phillips	Deptford Green	×	×	✓	×	Oct 2016
Clare Cassidy	Sedgehill	✓	а	~	~	Dec 2017
Special School Headteacher						
Lynne Haines	Greenvale	~	~	~	 ✓ 	Oct 2018

Pupil Referral Unit Headteacher						
Heather Johnston	Abbey Manor	✓	~	а	~	Dec 2017
Primary School Governors						
Rosamund Clarke	Perrymount	~	✓	~	~	Dec 2018
VACANT	PRIMARY					
Secondary & Special School Governors						
Pat Barber	Bonus Pastor		✓	~	а	Dec 2018
Ruth Elliott	Watergate	√	а	~	~	Mar 2019
VACANT	SECONDARY					
Academies						
Dr Tesca Bennett	Haberdashers' Knights Academy	×	√	V	V	Oct 2018
VACANT	VACANT					
14-19 Consortium Rep						
Asfa Sohail	Lewisham Southwark College			а	~	Mar 2019
Early Years - PVI						
Dawn Nasser	Rose House Montessori	~	~	~	а	Jan 2017
Diocesan Authorities						
Sara Sanbrook-Davies	Southwark Diocesan Board of Education	~	~	~	~	Dec 2019
Yvonne Epale	Substitute – Education Commission – Catholic Diocese of Southwark	 ✓ 	~	~	а	Feb 2018

Lynne Haines	Forum Chair	•	✓	✓	✓	Oct 2017
Keith Barr	Forum Vice-Chair	✓	✓	✓	✓	Oct 2017

Also Present	
Angela Scattergood	AD Education Services
Mala Dadlani	Interim Group Finance Manager
Claudia Smith	LB Lewisham
Lorenco Reynolds-Moxam	LB Lewisham
Vaughan Williams	Clerk
Howard Hawes	Observer

1. Apologies and Acceptance of Apologies

Apologies received from Dawn Nasser, Manda George, Pat Barber, Matthew Ringham and Yvonne Epale. Apologies accepted.

Forum noted that Mark Phillips (Secondary Head) term of office expires October 2019. Nominations for the vacancy to be referred to Secondary Heads Forum.

2. Declaration of Interests

None.

3. Minutes of the Meeting – 11 July 2019

Agreed.

4. Matters Arising

No matters arising.

5. Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 2019/2020 Update

Forum were presented with a regular update report on the DSG and were asked to consider a more formulaic approach to the application of the Early Years 3 & 4 year old funding to better support clarity.

Prior to giving consideration to the content of the report the Interim Group Finance Manager provided a brief update on the initial education funding units notification received on the 11th October 2019. Although key elements of the funding notification (early years and growth fund) were still to be received initial analysis indicated a potential funding gap. When taking account of the staff pay and pensions uplift schools were facing a real term budget pressure of 3% set against a provisional funding increase of between 0.5% and 1.84%. 1.84% is the max that can be allocated per the DfE regulations.

Forum further noted that although there had been a 9% uplift in funding for the high needs block this had only been guaranteed for one year on the basis that high needs was scheduled to be reviewed next year. The consequence of this was that caution would need to be taken when considering the application of these funds.

Forum were very concerned to note that funding to the central block had been reduced by 20% for 12/13 baseline items and that this may indicate that this funding stream would potentially be phased out over a period of 5 years. Forum noted that the central block currently provides a subsidy of £2 million to the high needs block, which coupled with the high needs review added further uncertainty.

With regard to the current DSG, and the disparity between the funding settlement in Lewisham compared with similar boroughs, it was agreed that the Director of Education Services and Interim Group Finance Manager in consultation with the Chair of Forum would put together an action plan to formally review the situation. Actions to include obtaining formula back-up data and undertaking a review of census data.

Forum were presented with the updated DSG position as at July 2019 and noted that overall at gross level, the school block allocation for Lewisham remains at £209.65m. The net position is adjusted for recoupment with regards to the amount the ESFA will top slice to fund Lewisham academy schools. Although there is no change to the central school services block and the budget remains at £5.42m there has been an overall reduction in the high needs block in the gross allocation of £108k. Forum noted that this is the adjustment for high needs places between "exported" places (children placed in other LAs) and "imported" places (children from other LAs placed in Lewisham schools). The net position shows a further adjustment of £42k reflecting ESFA adjustments for academy schools. The overall impact for the LA is predicted to be net neutral.

With respect to the early years block Forum noted that although Lewisham had received an increase in its allocation of £320k.

Lewisham currently retains only 3.8% for central EY activity as it has been set on a historic basis. EY central activity not only facilitates the collection of headcounts and financial processes to get the money out to settings, it also delivers a range of activity to ensure that children access their free entitlements in high quality provision. This includes information for parents to increase take-up (a key priority);

quality improvement framework to support settings to improve practice, inclusion and outcomes; ensuring delivery on priorities such as health, mental health; underachieving groups; parenting support and transition to school. We propose that the Service Manager for Early Years reports annually to forum on the allocation of EY central funds.

Forum noted that the deprivation factor should be calculated within the formula as a percentage of the three and four year old funding element within the EY block. In Lewisham it has historically been calculated as a percentage of the entire EY block. This is not the correct application. In 2018/19 the deprivation factor was £864k. Forum were asked to consider a recommended formulaic approach which will better meet funding guidelines and enable budgets to flex in line with movement in take-up as per table 3 in the report:

- Lewisham is funded at £5.62 per child
- Our basic hourly rate to settings is set at £5.00 per hour as agreed by Schools Forum. This accounts for 89% of the available funds.
- 5% of funds for central EY activity equates to 28p per hour.
- 2% (or £0.12) would be required to maintain the EY Inclusion Fund at circa £450k as discussed previously with Forum. Based on the current projected numbers, this is equivalent to £443k
- Proposal for 1% (or £0.05) contingency to deal with any volatility in numbers which would have an impact on all associated budgets. Proposed 3% (or £0.17) for deprivation factor. This would deliver a budget of £627k.

The DFE has awarded an increase for 2018/19 of £186k. It was previously agreed at Forum that any unallocated additional funds would be put in the EY Inclusion Fund. Forum noted that the revised deprivation figure will left a gap of £237k between the 2018/19 figure of £864k and the £627k. For 2019/20, it is proposed that the £186k additional funding is used to support the deprivation factor to keep this in line with prior year positions, with contingency meeting the remainder. This would mean that there are no unallocated funds available for the EY Inclusion fund. Going forward, Forum were asked to consider the three and four year old funding formula to deliver the three and four year old entitlement budget as illustrated in the report:

The Interim Group Finance Manager advised Forum that the current method of applying the deprivation factor is very cumbersome and works on the basis of:

- identification of number of pupils in IDACI 21%
- exclude settings where the number is less than 5
- weighting based on banding structure to recognise number of pupils with IDACI
- enhanced threshold of £271.20 for every child if the number of pupils is greater than 20.

The method needs to be simplified.

Forum further noted that the Maintained Nursery Schools (MNS) supplementary factor is currently set at £441k for 2019/20. This is a protection arrangement to fund MNS in addition to the above £5.62 hourly allocation to the LA. This is allocated between the two nursery schools as an enhancement of £2.70 per hour on a place-filled basis. The funding can only be allocated across the two MNS. Options will be considered with the relevant schools to consider if it is possible to simplify the method to enable the MNS to have more upfront stability. Lewisham is currently awaiting information from the DfE regarding 2020/21 funding arrangements including the detail supporting supplementary funding.

Decision

Forum agreed the following recommendations:

- Note the contents of this report and to agree the formalisation of the formulaic approach to the three and four year old funding entitlement.
- Agree the application of the final settlement for 2018/19 of £186k to the deprivation factor within the three and four year old entitlement funding to provide transitional support
- Support a more simpler application of the Deprivation Factor (2020/21)
- > Agree that the Head of Early Years brings an annual report to Schools Forum.

6 Schools Financial Health Check

Forum received a report in consideration of schools' financial health check based on the 2019/20 Governing Body Approved Budget Plans together with an update on the changes progressed by Schools Finance team to support schools. The report also included the local authority's response to the Department for Education' summer consultation "Financial Transparency of Local Authority Maintained Schools and Academy Trusts" Although Forum noted that all schools have submitted a budget plans for 2019/20 some schools are currently working with the LA where the information provided required further revision or the schools position requires formal deficit recovery planning. Six tables were presented to Forum which included the following information:

- Number of schools in Lewisham at the end of the financial year in deficit with and without loans.
- Number of schools that are able to set a balanced budget over the 3 year period.
- Number of schools that are able to set a balanced budget only by using reserves.
- The level of reserves reducing to £4.5m by 2021/22
- The number of schools with projected deficits
- The overall net projected position

Although Forum noted that the DfE statutory position is that loans (i.e. deficits) must not exceed 40% of the overall surplus position Lewisham is currently at 25%, progressing to 65% in 2020/21. The Interim Group Finance Manager confirmed that all information is based on budget returns from schools, including assumptions that need to be clarified, and that information presented in this report should to be read with caution, as historically there has been significant variance between budgets submitted as part of the closure of accounts and the final outturn. There are various reasons for this, including changes in pupil data, updated funding announcement etc. Moving forward Schools Finance will continue to develop collaborative participation and new ways of working to ensure that data is accurately reported.

With regard to pupil premium funding Forum noted that there had been a net reduction of around £700k, comprising £900k reduction offset by £200k increase. The Interim Group Finance Manager said that whilst these figures are DfE estimates, the premise was that they are broadly correct. This will have implications for some schools who have factored in higher levels. During the autumn term we will be working closely with schools to revise this data for pupil premium, pupil number and any other changes.

The Interim Group Finance Manager informed Forum that the financial situation emerging in this report is not unique to Lewisham and that the DfE is aware of the potential implications. In response a consultation was issued during the summer (14th July to 30th September). "Financial Transparency of Local Authority Maintained Schools and Academy Trusts". A copy of the Local Authority response is attached for your information. Overall the direction of travel is that the DFE is aware of the financial pressures in schools and appears to be shifting responsibility to sit with schools and the Local Authority, with greater accountability at the Local Authority level and a shift away from the previous light touch approach.

At the last forum meeting The Interim Group Finance Manager provided an update on the additional changes that had been put in place to support schools. She further confirmed that in light of discussions with forum, schools, Schools Resource management Advisors (SMRA), DFE and the consultation paper, a collaborative metric base financial analysis tool had been developed. Although draft versions for primary and secondary schools were presented to Forum it was noted that metric information will was being progressed for specialist provision and nursery schools.

Decision

Forum agreed to note the following recommendations:

- The overall position for Lewisham schools based on budget plans supplied suggests an extremely challenging landscape over the 3 year budget cycle.
- Review of previous year's data notes large volatility between budget plan position and outturn and for this reason the information must be treated with caution. The key goal is to work with schools so that a more reflective positon is presented at budget planning compared with outturn.
- Within budget plans there are assumptions. With regards to Pupil Premium there is an estimated reduction in pupil premium funding of net £702k, being a reduction of £932k offset with increases of £230k. This will further frustrate schools' ability to set a balanced budget.
- The DfE summer consultation paper on "Financial Transparency of Local Authority Maintained Schools and Academy Trusts" and the LA response.
- > The potential implications of the above for Lewisham LA and schools.
- Update on changes progressed by the Schools Finance Team to support schools, including a presentation of the revised budget plan documents incorporating key metrics modules for primary and secondary schools. Modules for Special and Nursery Schools are yet to be developed and will be developed before the Financial Settlement information in spring.

7. Committed Funds Scheme

Forum were presented with a report to consider the proposed implementation of the Committed Funds Scheme as discussed at the last Schools Forum meeting. Forum noted that this is a voluntary scheme and funds will continue to remain as part of the schools balances and that the proposed scheme is designed to help schools to decipher between committed and non-committed funds for the benefit of budgeting.

At the July meeting the Interim Finance Manager informed Forum that the level of school balances on closure of accounts had increased. Engagement with schools informed us that a fair proportion of these funds relate to commitments that are "allowable"- i.e. deemed exempt from clawback under the clawback mechanism set out in the Lewisham Scheme for Financing Schools.

The Scheme for Financing Schools as it presently stands notes the following allowable commitments as exempt from the balance control mechanism:

- capital works;
- savings to fund enhancements to new builds from the Building Schools for the Future programmes and Private Finance Initiatives;
- funding shortfalls for future temporary drops in pupil numbers;
- funds to dampen the effects of step increases in pupil numbers that occur in September but are not funded until the following financial year;
- Single status;
- joint school collaboration projects which run over more than one year;
- accruals that should have taken place but could not be actioned in time for closing the accounts;
- and any administrative error in the accounts.

As part of the proposed changes schools would be asked to provide details for committed spend. During visits to schools, it was often difficult to understand the true financial position of the school. The possibility to offer schools the ability to keep funds aside for specified commitments was discussed in appropriate cases. Feedback suggested this would be helpful for both the school and the Local Authority.

Forum further noted that for clarity, the process merely splits long term committed spend from noncommitted spend for no other purpose than "presentation for clarity". The funds continue to belong to the school and to ensure the committed funds are lodged for "bona fida" purposes an application criteria was attached at Appendix A of the report. Although the scheme is voluntary for schools who feel it would offer greater clarity in their budget discussions with the Governing Body and Local Authority schools lodging funds will need to provide evidence that the money is being spent on the purpose intended.

Decision

Forum agreed the following recommendations:

- > Note the contents of this report.
- Recognise that the scheme is voluntary and is intended to support schools with established budgets for specific allowable commitments, to distinguish these from "business as usual funds".
- > Approve the operation of the scheme as set out in Appendix A

8. Revised Scheme for Financing Schools

Forum received a report concerned with a revised Scheme for Financing Schools and noted that Local authorities are required to publish schemes for financing schools setting out the financial relationship between them and the schools they maintain.

On 5th February 2019, the Department for Education (DfE) issued version 10 of the statutory guidance for local authorities on schemes for financing schools. It relates to Section 48 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, and Schedule 14 to the act. The guidance lists the provisions which a local authority's scheme must, should or may include. Schemes need not follow the format used in this guidance.

In making any changes to their schemes, local authorities must consult all maintained schools in their area and receive the approval of the members of their schools forum representing maintained schools. Local authorities must take this guidance into account when they revise their schemes, in consultation with the schools forum. Any DfE directives do not require revision and are effective from the date of publication by the DFE.

Schools Forum at its meeting in July was advised that a revised version of the Scheme for Delegation will be presented at the meeting in October. Appendix A of the report provided the current Scheme for financing School which was last updated at 1st April 2016. Since that period there have been changes both locally and by the DFE. This report aims to bring the Scheme for Financing Schools up to date as at the DFE guidance of the 4th February and Locally based on the July 2019 Schools Forum meeting. Appendix A was set out as follows:

- DFE directives that do not require approval (Green DFE directive).
- Changes supported by Forum which need formalisation (Pink LA
- Changes) agreed with Schools Forum
- Any further changes arising from this review of the scheme (Blue is LA changes being proposed and require consultation)
- DfE changes from prior years and do not require consultation (Purple).

Forum noted that a consultation process was necessary and that given the level of changes required it is proposed that sample document accompany the "Draft Scheme for Financing Schools" which was attached to the report as Appendix B. Schools would be invited to respond with any comments or changes as necessary. The consultation will take place between 1st November to the 15th December 2019 and outcomes will be presented to Schools Forum at the January 2020 meeting.

Decision

Forum agreed the following recommendations:

- Note the revisions stated, noting that DFE directives do not require consultation however local variations do require consultation.
- > Approve the consultation paper as attached for wider consultation with maintained schools
- Agree the duration of the consultation to take place from 1st November to the 15th December with outcomes of the consultation to be presented to Schools Forum in January 2020.

9. High Needs Funding Update

Forum received a report on the High Needs Mitigation Action Plan as discussed by the Schools Forum High Needs Working Group. It was noted that demand for high needs places that meet the needs of children with SEND is increasing and that the mitigation plan forms part of a wider strategy to ensure that there are sufficient places in Lewisham to meet demand and to reduce the need for out-borough placements. A meeting with the special school headteachers was scheduled for 18th October to monitor the mitigation plan, review place planning, admissions and primary/secondary transfer.

Decision

> Forum noted the actions of the Mitigation Action Plan as set out in the report.

SCHOOLS FORUM ACTION SUMMARY

ITEM	ACTION TO BE TAKEN	OFFICER (S) RESPONSIBLE	OUTCOME/ CURRENT POSITION
Forum 17 Oct 2019, Item 5 – Dedicated Schools Grant 2019/20.	Action/consultation plan to be drawn up.	Angela Scattergood Mala Dadlani	For Jan 2020 forum.
Forum 17 Oct 2019, Item 6 – Finance Support to Schools	Financial support to schools.	Mala Dadlani	For Jan 2020 forum.
Forum 17 Oct 2019, item 8 - Revised Scheme for Financing Schools.	Report on the outcome of the consultation on the proposed scheme.	Mala Dadlani	For Jan 2020 forum.